

PalArch's Journal of Archaeology of Egypt / Egyptology

Genre Based Writing Indonesian: Teacher's Role In Teaching Writing In Senior High School Of Banten, Indonesia

Reni Nur Eriyani¹, Emzir², Fathiatty Murtadho³

^{1,2,3}Program Studi Linguistik Terapan, Universitas Negeri Jakarta, Jakarta, Indonesia
Email: ¹reni_eryani@unj.ac.id, ²emzir.unj@unj.ac.id, ³fathiatty_murtadho@unj.ac.id

Vijaya Sarathi Timmapuram, V. Suman Raju, N.Chandra Sekar Reddy: Genre Based Writing Indonesian: Teacher's Role In Teaching Writing In Senior High School Of Banten, Indonesia -- Palarch's Journal Of Archaeology Of Egypt/Egyptology 17(9). ISSN 1567-214x

Keywords: role of teacher, productivity, students' works

ABSTRACT

Teachers as professional educators have duties such as educating, teaching, guiding, directing, training, assessing, and evaluating students. In carrying out these professional duties, teachers must always develop their professional potential. The purpose of this study is to describe the contribution of teacher's self-development in teaching Indonesian writing skill to the productivity of students' works at SMAN 1 Cipanas Lebak Banten. The qualitative ethnographic used in this study. The data were collected techniques through observation, interviews, and field notes. The analysis of the data using Spradley with included four stages, namely analysis of domains, taxonomies, components, and cultural themes. The results of this study indicate that teacher's role as a teacher, educator, facilitator who guides students in the classroom. In addition, the teacher also has a role as a motivator to direct students to be productive and creative individuals. This can be proofed by the results of the students' work in the form of novels, short stories, poems that were published or managed to become champions in the competition

1. Introduction

Writing skill is an integral part of language skills that must be mastered by students from elementary to high school. Among the four language skills, writing has been regarded by the students as one of the most difficult areas to improve it, thus Stein & Kucan (2009) stated writing is a very difficult skill for students to master. Writing as a skill is an application of the aspect of knowledge. The categories of knowledge is divided into four types, namely factual, conceptual, procedural, and metacognitive (Killen, 2007).

Based on several previous studies, obtained several descriptions of the problems of learning Indonesian in schools. Basuki, Suryani, & Setiadi (2017),

Commented [R11]: Data ini tidak muncul di temuan penelitian

Commented [R12]: Data ini tidak muncul di temuan penelitian

Commented [R13]:

Commented [R14]: Peran gur seagai guru?

Commented [R15]:

Commented [R16]: Ini harus jelas bentuk peran guru sebagai teacher, educator, facilitator who guides students in the classroom

explain that one of the difficulties in learning Indonesian is in developing ideas, especially in written form. Teachers mostly ask their students to memorize a number of knowledge about literature. Meanwhile Hartono (2005) highlights the problem of learning Indonesian which is more focused on learning linguistic patterns and rules (grammar centric).

Another problem is also related to the competence of teachers. This can be seen in the results of research conducted by Bukran (2016). In his research, Bukran highlighted three problems related to teachers that caused Indonesian language learning to be not optimal in (1) making lesson plans / syllabus, (2) integrating Indonesian language material with material in other subjects, (3) preparing authentic assessments. In fact, according to Rezky, Ramly, & Saleh (2020), in preparing lesson plans, it is not uncommon for teachers to take a shortcut, namely copying lesson plans from the internet. This problem can be overcome if the teacher has good competence in doing this.

The description of the problems of learning Indonesian in highschools does not occur in all highschools in Indonesia. There are still many schools that have implemented Indonesian language teaching in accordance with the set learning objectives. One of them happened at SMA Negeri I Cipanas, Lebak, Banten Province.

In the field of writing, this school has a pile of achievements in the fields of language and literature. In 2011, namely the first winner in Kabupaten Lebak in the news script reading competition, the drama performance competition for the perpetuation of Indonesian cultural and literary arts and also the FLS2N drama, the third winner for the Drama Scriptwriting Competition The perpetual competition for Indonesian cultural and literary arts, the third winner in the province for drama / fragment festival competition.

In 2012 this school was also the first winner in high school level poetry writing competition in the context of the language month of the district. In 2013 this school won two district level championships and three first winners for the provincial level. The championship for the regency level was the first winner in the FLS2N women's poetry script and poster design competition. The championships at the provincial level are in writing competitions for poetry, short stories and drama scripts. Especially for the drama script writing championship, it was not only the first prize that was won but also the second and third place winners.

Regarding the achievement of the results of the National Examination, the Indonesian Language National Examination at SMAN 1 Cipanas also did not disappoint. National Exam scores for Indonesian Language and Literature always get the best average score in school when compared to other subjects. In the 2011/2012 Academic Year, the highest score was 8.20 with an average of 5.66. In the 2012/2013 academic year, the highest score for the National Examination for Indonesian was 8.20 with an average of 5.75. In the 2014/2015 Academic Year, the highest score for the National Exam in

Commented [R17]: Ini apa? Ditulis yang lengkap, reviewer tidak mengetahui FLS2N

Indonesian was 91.8 with an average score of 72.64. Finally, in the 2015/2016 Academic Year, the highest score of the National Examination in Indonesian was 86.0 with an average of 64.67. The description correctly shows that the National Examination scores at this school did not disappoint.

In addition, there are students of SMAN 1 Cipanas who have succeeded in publishing literary works in the form of novels, short stories and poetry collections. The literary works that have been produced by students of SMAN 1 Cipanas are novels entitled *Jejak Cinta*, *1000 km*, and *Jembatan Asa* by Henrik Kurniawan.

The SMA 1 Cipanas has a more focus on learning Indonesian, as has been stated above. Learning Indonesian at SMA 1 Cipanas is doing well, active, and creative, which has been proven by the aforementioned list of achievements and work results. The students' work is an excellent result of creativity. Creativity is very strongly related to ideas and how they can be generated (Sidawi & Hamza (2012). Creativity can be seen as a process and a result (Dartnall, 2002). It was rarely done by students in other schools in the area (Eriyani, 2016). The important components in the creativity process have been very supportive of the Indonesian language learning which is carried out at the school. An important component that can be carried out in the family, school and community environment certainly occurs because of the role of the teacher. Therefore, the problem that becomes the focus of discussion in this paper is about the role of the teachers in teaching writing at SMAN 1 Cipanas?"

Commented [R18]: Kalimat ini kurang koheren dengan kalimat sebelumnya

2. Methodology

Qualitative research was used in this research and the researcher used an ethnography study. Ethnography is a culture— studying culture (Spradley, 1980). This study was conducted at SMAN 1 Cipanas, Lebak, Banten Province, Indonesia. It was carried out in the 2017/2018 academic year. It is used in this research because this research describes the social phenomenon of the teaching learning process and can expose roles of culture such as teacher's role in teaching writing.

Commented [R19]: Pada bagian ini dijelaskan technique of collecting data, data sources, data analyzing

3. Data Collection

The observation and semi-structured interviews with the teacher's role in teaching writing, were adopted in this study. Secondary sources of data included the teacher's role in teaching writing autobiographies; and archival material of administrative office schools, which included incident reports and statements of events. These secondary data were crucial in confirming and contrasting interview and observation findings (Cruz & Higginbottom, 2013)

4. Data Analysis

The analysis and conclusion process refers to the teacher's role in the Indonesian writing process. The analysis of the data followed is carried out in

the form of analyzing by Spradley with included four stages, namely analysis of domains, taxonomies, components, and cultural themes.

5. Finding And Discussion

The teacher's ability to manage learning is one aspect that influences the success of students' writing. The teacher's ability have four competencies standards, they are pedagogic, personality, professional, and social competency (Priyana, J., Triastuti & Putro 2020). The teacher self-development activities in this school based on the results of observations and interviews were carried out well. It can be seen from teachers who actively participate in training, seminars, workshops, to become instructors, and competitions up to the national level (outstanding teachers). In addition, the teacher also produces written products that can be used as concrete evidence, real examples for students, and used as teaching materials.

A more detailed self-development in the learning process developed by the teacher can be seen from the three main stages of the learning process (introduction, core, and cover). The learning process developed by the teacher is used by using a communicative, collaborative, student-focused approach, based on genre of text, contextual, and scientific using process-based, portfolio, and authentic assessment. The learning process is also developed by the teacher systematically, effectively, efficiently, and varied. Based on the results of observations, it was found that teachers in general have carried out the learning process as follows.

Preliminary activities are carried out by the teacher with the aim of conditioning students to be ready for learning. The details of the preliminary activities consist of greeting, praying, checking the attendance and readiness of students to learn, motivating students, perceptions, and suggesting learning objectives for the day.

The core activities in learning play an important role in achieving learning objectives and in shaping the predetermined student abilities. The process of core learning activities is compiled by the teacher which describes the learning process and the ability of the teacher's knowledge of the teaching-learning approach. The teacher's ability to manage the classroom affects the behavior and ability of student achievement and behavior as well (Betts & Shkolnik, 1999). Based on the results of the interview, the teacher stated that the communication between the teacher and students was going well. In addition, learning is structured using a student-focused approach. It is also supported by competent teachers.

Teachers' knowledge of genre-based learning, which is an indication of learning outcomes through training that teachers participate in, is highly applied in the classroom. Genre-based learning concepts are discussed and reinforced by Martin & Rose, (2012), Boeriswati (2016), and Axford (2009). Martin explained that to master the written genre, students need direct

Commented [R110]: Paparkan temuan penelitian berupa hasil data interview guru, siswa, kepala dan kepala sekolah kemudian baru dbahas satu persatu. Andingkan hasil penelitian anad dengan penelitian sebelumnya

instruction. Teaching begins with collaborative production and then individually (Elashri, 2013). Each student is invited to understand each genre to be written. Learning begins with examples from the teacher to produce his own text. Based on the results of the interview, the teacher provides teaching materials or examples of text produced by the teacher himself that has been published by Kompasiana and other social media. The results of student work that have been published in the form of collections of short stories, novels, and collections of poetry are also often used as examples of text as teaching materials. Examples of texts given by the teacher are not only limited to those that have been published, but also in the form of texts that have been produced by organizations in the school environment, such as proposals and reports produced by Student Council .

Core activities are not limited to only being carried out in the classroom, the teacher also completes the core activities with structured and unstructured learning that is held outside of learning hours. Structured learning according to interviews conducted with students and based on observations is carried out by giving assignments with clear guidelines or guidelines. Unstructured learning is given by the teacher only by providing directions and encouragement to add and enrich students' insights.

The final activity is not just a closing greeting. The teacher carries out activities such as makes conclusion of the lesson, assesses the final achievement of learning, reflects, and also assigns assignments for the next meeting. The implementation of the assessment at the end of the lesson emphasizes the assessment process.

The role of teacher in evaluating learning according to the results of observations and interviews is carried out starting from lesson planning to final learning activities. Evaluation is also carried out starting from the process to the results. In addition, evaluation is not only carried out by the teacher, but also starts from self evaluating by student itself and also evaluating friends. Teachers develop learning and evaluation based on student experiences. This is reinforced by Boud's opinion in Agustina (2019) which states that students 'personal reflections or experiences depend on the students' intellectual and affective themselves which are developed based on experiences that make students themselves have a better understanding.

The teacher also provides guidance intensively to students who need guidance and enrichment and for students who have outstanding abilities. Motivation and tutoring are given after learning is complete, directing activities either individually or in groups. Final and follow-up activities are carried out systematically and flexibly. This is done to support maximum learning outcomes.

6. Conclusion

Learning to write Indonesian that was carried out at SMA Negeri 1 Cipanas was based on the 2013 curriculum. The teacher's role in curriculum development is very much in line with the self-development that has been proclaimed by the government. The more optimal self-development of the teacher, the more it affects the results of the learning process carried out. The teacher's role, from planning to evaluation, is part of the implications and implementation of the teacher's excellent self-development abilities from all aspects of competence. The teacher's role as a teacher, educator, facilitator who directs students in class. In addition, the teacher also has a role as a motivator to direct students to become intelligent individuals both emotionally and intellectually. The teacher's role as an open and trusted facilitator can accept students who are unique as individuals. Another teacher's role is as an evaluator. The teacher evaluates student learning outcomes and the teacher's planning. By evaluating the learning process and student learning outcomes, the teacher can determine planning for the next activity process better.

References

- Agustina, N. E. F., Herlina, R., & Faridah, D. (2019). Corrective Feedback on Pronunciation Errors: Teacher's Perception and EFL High School Students' Self-Reflection. *Journal of English Education and Teaching*. <https://ejournal.unib.ac.id/index.php/JEET/article/view/8708/pdf>
- Axford, B. P. H. and F. W. (2009). *Scaffolding Literacy; An intergrated and sequential approach to teaching, reading, spelling and writing* (A. Press, Ed.). Camberwell.
- Basuki, B., Suryani, Y. E., & Setiadi, D. B. P. (2017). Kesulitan Belajar Siswa dalam Pembelajaran Bahasa Indonesia. *LITERA*. <https://doi.org/10.21831/ltr.v16i1.14247>
- Betts, J. R., & Shkolnik, J. L. (1999). The behavioral effects of variations in class size: The case of math teachers. *Educational Evaluation and Policy Analysis*, 21(2), 193-213.
- Boeriswati, E. (2016). *Pendidikan Literasi*. Jakarta: UNNES.
- Bukran. (2016). "Problematika Pembelajaran Bahasa Indonesia Kurikulum 2013 Guru SMA Kelas X Di Kabupaten Lombok Utara". *Jurnal Ilmiah Profesi Pendidikan*. Vol 1, No 2 (2016)
- Cruz, E. V., & Higginbottom, G. (2013). The use of focused ethnography in nursing research. *Nurse Researcher*, 20(4), 36-43. <https://doi.org/10.7748/nr2013.03.20.4.36.e305>
- Derewianka, B. (2015). *The contribution of genre theory to literacy education in Australia*. Norwood, Australia: Australian Literacy Educator's Association.
- Dartnall, T. (Ed.). (2002). *Creativity, cognition, and knowledge: An interaction*. Greenwood Publishing Group.
- Elashri, I. I. E. A.-E. (2013). The Effect of the Genre-Based Approach to Teaching Writing on the EFL Al-Azhr Secondary Students' Writing Skills and their

- attitudes towards writing. ثبث، ث (2)، ثثثثثث.
<https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jns.2003.09.014>
- Eriyani, R. N. (2016). Laporan Wawancara Penelitian Pembelajaran Bahasa Indonesia di SMA 1 Cipanas (Kajian Etnografi). Jakarta.
- Killen, R. (2007). Teaching strategies for outcomes-based education. Juta and Company Ltd.
- Martin, J. R., & Rose, D. (2012). Working with Discourse: Meaning Beyond the Clause. London: Bloomsbury Academic.
- Priyana, J., Triastuti, A., & Putro, N. H. P. S. (Eds.). (2020). Teacher Education and Professional Development In Industry 4.0: Proceedings of the 4th International Conference on Teacher Education and Professional Development (InCoTEPD 2019), 13-14 November, 2019, Yogyakarta, Indonesia. CRC Press.
- Pujianto, A., Nuryatin, A., & Artikel, I. (2015). Seloka : Jurnal Pendidikan Bahasa dan Sastra Indonesia Keefektifan Pembelajaran Keterampilan Menulis Cerpen dengan Model Investigasi Kelompok dan Model STAD Berdasarkan Tipe Kepribadian Peserta Didik Kelas VII Info Artikel. 4(2), 131–139.
- Rezky, Muh, Ramly, dan Muhammad Saleh. (2020). “Problematika Pembelajaran Bahasa Indonesia Berbasis Teks”. Indonesia: Jurnal Pembelajaran Bahasa dan Sastra Indonesia. Vol 1, No 1 (2020)
- Sidawi, B., & Hamza, N. (2012). Special issue on CAAD and innovation. Journal of Information Technology in Construction (ITcon), 17(14), 237-238.
- Spradley, J. (1998). The Ethnographic Interview (from Spradley, 1979). Introduction to Qualitative Methods.
- Stein, M. K., & Kucan, L. (2009). Instructional explanations in the disciplines (Eds.). Springer Science & Business Media.